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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF S
COMPLIANCE, INVESTIGATION AND C , —
LICENSING : =t
. Docket No.: 100 |, 72 2 (ENF-ORD}S

v. . o o o

MICHAEL McFERRON POPE, individuslly

' NOTICE OF RIGHT TG APPREAL AND EEARING

You, MICHAEL McFERRON POPE, have the right to. appeal the attached Order of
Prohibition (the “Order”} within 10 days of the date of service. See 1 Pa. Code § 35.20. The
date of service is the date the Order is deposited in the mail or delivered to you in person, as the
case may be, as set forth in 1 Pa. Code § 33.34. If you appeal the Order, you also have a right to

a hearing,

‘To file an zppeal and request a hearing on the Order, you must file a petition with the
Secretary of Baoking within 10 days of the date of service. The petition must be in writing, state
clearly and concisely your grounds of interest in the subject matter, the facts you rely upon, the
law you rely upon, and the relief you seek. See | Pa. Code § 35.17. Please deliver your petition

10:

Linnea Freeberg, Docket Clerk,
Office of Executive Deputy Secretary
Pennsylvania Department of Banking
17 North Second Street, Suite 1300
Harrisburg, PA 17101

The petition must be received by the Docket Clerk within the aforementioned 10 day
deadline. Ifthe Docket Clerk does not receive your petition on time, you will waive your right to
an appeal and a hearing and the Order will be deemed final.

If you choose to file a petition challenging the Order, pIeaée send an additional copy to:

Sarah E. Sedlak, Assistant Counsel
Pennsylvania Department of Banking
1’7 N. Second Street, Suite 1300
Harrisburg, PA 17101
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Once you file your petition appealing the Order and requesting a hearing, you will be
notified of the hearing date, time, place, the person who will preside at your hearing, and any
other pertinent information. '

You have the right to be represented by an attorney. Corporations may be required to be

represented by an atforney.

The hearing and all other procedural matters will be governed by the Peﬁnsylvénia

- Administrative Agency Law, 2 Pa. C.5. §§ 501-508, 701-704, and the General Rules of

Administrative Practice and Procedure, 1 Pa. Code §§ 31.1.-35.251.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF
COMPLIANCE, INVESTIGATION A
LICENSING. - :
. Docket Mo.: 110122 (BNE-ORD)

V.

MICHAEL McFERRON POYE, individually

ORDER OF PROHIBITION

WHERFEAS, the Department of Banking (the “Department™) is the Comonweaith of
Pennsylvania’s administrative agency authorized and empowered fo administer énd é;xfél'ce the
Mortgage Licensing Act, 7 Pa. C.8. § 6101 et. seq.; and

WHEREAS, the Bureau of Compliance, Investigaﬁon and Licensing (the “Bureau”) is
primarily responsible for administering and enforcing the Mortgage L-i.censing Act for the
Department; and

' WHEREAS, Chapter 3 of the Mortgage Bankers and Brokers and Consumer Equity
Prrotaction Act {the "MBBCEPA™}, 63 P..S. § 456.301 et seq., and the Secondary Mortgage Loan
Act (the “SMELA™), 7P.S. § 6601 et seq. were repealed by operation of law on November 5,
2008; and |
| WHEREAS,- on November 5, 2008, the Mortgage Act repiaced Chapter 3 of the
MBBCEPA and the SMLA; and

WHEREAS, the Mortgage Liﬁensing Act amended the Mortgage Act on August 5, 2009,.

See 7 Pa. C.5. §6101, et. seq., amended by Act 31 of 2009, H.B. 1654 (PN, 2448); and



WHEREAS, on June 30; 2008, the United States Aftorueys’ Office, Western District of
Pennsylvania, filed an indict%ﬁent against Michael McFerron Pope (“Pope”) (See Indictment
attached as Exhibit A); é.nd |

WHEREAS, the Indictment alleged in its first count (“Count One”) that “from in or
around June 2002, and continuing thereafter until in or around December 2006, in the Western
District of Penngylvania and jelsawhere,” Pope, “knowingly and willfully did conspire, combine,
confederate and agr.ee with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit the
offenses” Df; Mail Fraud (18 U.S.C. § 1341), Wire Fraud (18 U.B.C. § 1343), Bank Fraud (18
U.S:C. § 1344), Obstruction of Justice (18 U,S..C. § 1512} and Money Laundering (18 U.S.C. §
1956), all of which constitufed a Conspiracy to Déﬁaud the United States (18 U.5.C. § 371
(See Bxhibit A {72 and 15(k)); and |

WHERFEAS, the Indictment alleged in its- second count {“Count Two™} that “from n or
around March 2005, in the Western District of Pennsyivania,” Pope, “did knowingly conduct and
. atternpt to conduct a financial transaction affecting interstate comserce, knowing that said
financial transaction involved the proceeds of some form of untawful activity with the intent to
promote th;z carrying on of the #peciﬁed unlawful activity of Mail, Wire and Bank Fraud” all of
* which c;cnstitutéd the oifan;e of Money Laundering (1BUS.C § 1956(a) 1)(AYD)) (See Exhibit
A ﬁi?); and

WHERFEAS, the Iﬁdictment alleged in its third count ("Count Three”) another count of
Money Launﬁering (18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1)(A)(D) (See Exhibit A %20); and

WHEREAS, the Indictment alleged that Pope and Tiffany Lynn Spmﬁts (“Sprouts™),

operated two businesses in Pleasant Hills, Pennsylvania under the names of Pope Financial




Services, Inc., (“Pope Financial”) énd Sprouts Mortgage, LLC (“Sprouts Mortgage”) (See
- Bxhibit A §1); and .

WHEREAS, the Imﬂictment alleged Pope and Sprouts;

(a) conspired, through Sprouts Mortgage and Pope Financial, to recruit at least six
different individuals as straw buyers (“Straw Buyer’é”) to separately purchase selected
uﬁimproved and residential rea! estate properties located m southwestern Permsyivania
(“Selected Properties”) on behalf of Sprouts, Pope and others (See Exhibit A3); and

(B) recruited the Straw Buyers to apply separately to various financial instif;“utions a.n_d
other mortgage lenders for mortgage lbans to be secured by the Selected Properties in exchangé
for a portion of the loan proceeds {See Exhibit A ﬂé); and

{c) . created false documents in connection with the mortgage loans o be secured by
the Selected Properties including: apph'cations; wage statements; financial statements; deposit
verifications; rent or mortgage Veﬁﬁcations; employment verifications; isleph@ne verifications; -
and property leases (See Exhibit A §4); and

&) created the documents to falseljf inflate the Straw Buyers’ employment and
financiel condition, to overstate their income and assets, in order to increase tﬁe dollar amount
that conld be borrowed against the Selected Properties (See Exhibit A §5); and

(e) deposited funds temporarily into bank accounts of the Straw Buyers to make it
appear that the Straw Buyers had sufficient assets to Qua.lify for the loans and to make the down
payment for the Selected Properties (Sce Fixhibit A%9); and

(fy directed the Straw Buyers to sign some of the false and fraudulent documents

(See Exhibit A §7); and




g} used appraisals with an inflated opinion of market value of the Selected Properties
11 Qrdér 1o increase the dollar amount that could be borrowed against the Selected Properties
| (See Exhibit A §6); and

(h) | directed the Straw Buyers to sign some of the false and fraudulent documents
{See Exhibit A |7}, and

(ij submitted the false and fraudulent documents io the financial and mortgage
iending institutions by United States mail, inclluding overnight &eiivery, by intersiate wire
transmissions, and in person (See Exhibit A 4[8); and ,

6 created false lease agréements purpotiing to show that the Straw Buyers would be
renting to others the properties the Straw Buyers owned to conceal the true domicile of the Straw
Buyers and to make it appear that the Straw Buyers had a sﬁurcé of income {See Bxlubit A §10);
and |

(k)  transferred funds between bank accounts and used currency to conceal the source
of down payﬁzents and the use of loan proceeds (See Exhibit Af11), and

o stmc:‘fured the trangactions using credi’zé and reimbursement of expenses to reduce
the amount of cash needed to complete the transactions {Sec Exhubit A § 12); and

(m) repaid some loans to Iull the financial institutions into believing that the loans
would be repaid, to deter further examination znd to avoid foreclosure of the loans (_S_gé;_ Exhibit
A13); and

(n} directed a Straw Buyer to testify falsely before a grand jury sitfing in the Western

District of .Fsﬁnsyivania about the Selected Properties and their related loans (See Exhibit A

q15); and




(o) | used some of the loan prooeéds to further the scheme and for their own use and
benefit, including the purchase of additional properties to the loss and detriment of the financial
institutions (See Exhibit A 14); and |

WHERIAS, the Indictment alleged thét in relation to property located on Griffin Street
in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (“Griffin Stree(”), Pope:;

. (&) directed Straw Buyer ES, in or around July 2002, f.te obtain a $112,500 mortgage
loan from ABN Amro Mortgage Group secured by Griffin Street owned by thé Straw Buyér {See
| Exhibit A §16(a}); and -

(b) - directed Straw Buyer Sprouts, in or arcund May 20053, to purchase Griffin Street
in foreclosure (S@_e_ Exhibit A §16(h)); and |

WHERE&S, the Indictment alleged Pope directed Straw Buyer €8S, in or around March
2004, to obtain a $175,200 mortzage Ipan from Aames Funding Corporation secured by and to
purchase property located on Thoﬁpson Street, Finleyville, Pemnsvlvania (See Exhibit A
116{b)); and

WHEREAS, the Indictment alleged that in relation to pfopérty located on Sugarcamp
Roat in Venetiz, Pennsylvania (“Sugarcamp Road™), i—“ope:

{a) in or around May 2004, sold at an inflated price an uninbabitable single family
residence and land located on Sugarcamp Road to Straw Buyers GR and FM (See Exhibit A.
jis(c)); and

(b) in or around March 2005, directed Straw Buyer MS to obtain a $§22,SOO.
mortgage loan from finencial institation Bank of America secured by and to pur;h.asé from two
Straw Buvers identified as GR and FM at an mflated price a portidn of Sugarcamp Road (See

Bxhibit A 16(d)); and



{c) in or around March 2005, diwected Straw Buyer Sprouts to purchase at a deflated
price the rerﬁaining portions of Sugarcamp Road (See Exhibit A {16(e)); and

(d)  in or around Aprit 2005, directed Stgaw Buyer MS fo obtain a $190,800 mortgage
loan from financial institution JP Morgan Chase Bank secured by 2 portion of Sugarcamp Road
(See Exhibit A 416(g)); and

WHEREAS, the In_dictme:nt alleged that in reiation to property located on Scenery Ridge
Drive (“Scenery Ridge”), Pope: |

(a)  in or aronnd March, 2005, directed Straw Buyer Sprouts to obtain a $50,000
| mortgage loan from financial institution World Savings Bank secured by .and to purchase |
Scenery Ridge (See Exhibit A §16(1)); and

(b} in or around October 2005, directed Straw Buyer JS fo obtain a $521,500
mortgage Loa.n from Encore Credit Coi’porétion seoﬁred by and to purchase Scenery Ridge at an
inflated price (See Exhibit A 16(1)); and | |

WHEREAS, the Indictment alleged that in relation to property located on Aetna Drive in |
Pittshurgh, Pennsylvaﬁia (“Aetna Drive’™), Pope:

() in or around October 2005, darected -Stréw Buyer Si}rou’gs to Aetna Drive (See
Exhibit A §[16(1)); and |

(by imor aroundrfanuary 2006 directed Straw Buyer Sprouts to obtain a $168 800
mortgage loan and 2 $21,100 mortgage loan from GreenPoint Mortgage Funding secured byr
Aetna Drive {See Exbit A §16{1)); and

WHERKEAS, the Indictment alleged Pépe directed Straw Buyer EM, in or around
December 2005, to obtain a $168,750 mortgage loan frorﬁ ¥irst Magnus Financial Corporation.

and a $56,250 mortgage loan from financial institution JP Morgan Chase Bank secured by and to



purchase property located oﬁ Cedarvue Drive, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (See Exhibit A §16(k));
and |

WHERFEAS, the Indictment alleged Pope directed Siraw Buyer éprouts,‘ in or around
June 2006, to obtain a $164,500 mc:»rtgége loan Fom financial institution Washington Mitual
Bank secured by and to purchase property located on Bassett Drive, Bethel Park, Pezméyivani&
(See Exhibit A {1 6(m)j; and |

WHERFEAS, the Indictment alleged Pope‘direoted Straw Buyer Sprouts, in or around
December 2006, to obtain a $154,850 mortgage loan from financial institution Wells Fargo Bank -
secured by and to purchase prhoperty located on East McMurray Road, Véneti;; Pennsylvania
(See Exhibit A §16(n)); and |

‘WHEREAS, the I_ﬁdictment alleged Pe:}pe. caused the deposit of $283,23'7 from the
proceeds of the saie of the property located on Sugarcamp Road, sard funds being the proceeds
of Bank Fraud, into the account of Spfouts at Mational City Bank With the intent to promote
Mail, Wire and Bank Fraud by obtaining an official t;heék for the purchase of addi‘ciénal property
(See Bxhibit A 18, and

WHEREAS, Pope pled guilty on February 19, 2008 to Counts One, Two, and Three of
the Indictrnent (See attached as Exhibit B); and

WHEREAS, Counts One, Two, and Thrae. of the Indictment contain felony offenses; and |

WHEREAS, Sprouts pled guilty to engeging it conduct relating to the mortgage
industry; and

WHERFEAS, the Department has the autharity. to “prohibit or permanently remove a

person or Hoensee responsible for a violation of this chapter from working in the present capacity



or in any other capacity of the person or licensee related to acﬁviﬁas regulated by the
department” 7 Pa. C.S. § 6138(2)(5); and |
WHERFEAS, Section 6138(&)(4) of the Mortgage Licensing Act (corresponding to
| Section 310(a) of the MBBCEPA and Section 16(1) of the SMLA]) grants the Department bmad
authority to issue orders as may be necessary for the enforcement of the Mortgage Licensing Act,
7Pa C.5. § 6138(a)(4) (corresponding to 63 P.8. § 456.310(a) and 7 P.S. § 6616(1));
AND NOW THEREFORE; based upon the foregoing, the Bureau, under the authority
cited abave; hereby imposes the following Order. Upon the effective date of th-is Order:
. Michael McFen‘oﬁ Pope, as a natural person or as a corporation or as aﬁy other form of
- prganization of aﬁy kind whatsoever, 1s hereby prohibited from working in the rﬁortgage '
loan Business as regulated 'by the Mortgage Licensing Act as a licensee, Bmpioyfaé,
independent cortractor, agent, representative, or in any other capacity of any kind

whatsoever, in any way whatsoever.

IT IS 50 ORDERED.

Brian Crossland; Compliance Divisi’o}z@iaf
Department of Banking -
- Bureau of Compliance, Investigation and Licensing
Market Square Plaza
17 N 2™ Street, Suite 1300
Harrsburg, PA 17101
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DEPARTMENT OF BANKING

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -
DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF
COMPLIANCE, INVESTIGATION AND
LICENSING - : |
“ . Docket No.: 100100 (ENF-ORD)
V. :

MICHAERL McFERRON POPE, individually

CERTIFICATE OF SERVECE

1 hereby certify that [ have this day served a copy of the foregoing Order of Prohibition
upon the parties below, who constifute the only parties of record in this proceeding, in
accordance with the reguirements of | Pa. Code § 33.31:

BY FIRST CLASS MAIL and CERTIFTED MAIL

Michael McFerron Pope
2223 Delaware Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

i
Dated this ﬂ?f; day of May 2010,

@ﬁ?ah E. Sedlak, é;siistzni: Counsel
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Banking

17 North Second Street, Suite 1300
Harrisburg, PA 17101

(718) 787-1471
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANTA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA . ' .
- Criminal No. O g(""

(18'U.S.c. §§ 371 and
1956{a) (1) (&) (1) and 2)

V.

MICHAEL McFERRON POPE

THE INDICTMENT

€ T
The Grand Jury charges: %’; M s
' —E2 oo =
At all times material to this Indictment: :ri;'fjj*‘ e -
— 2
INTRODUCTION | R =
1.

Defendant MICHAEL McFERRON POPE operated, with-miffany
Lynn Sprouts, twor buéinesses named Pope Financial Services, Inc.,
and Sprouts Morxrtgage, LLC, which w;ere‘ both locatéd- in the same

‘office on Lewis Run Road in Pleasant Hills, Pemnsylvania.
Defendant MICHAEL McFERRON POPE purported to be a mortgage loan

bI_‘oker- '

COUNT ONE

THE CONSPIRACY AND ITS OBJECTS

2.

From in or aroﬁnd June 2002, and continuing therea-ftef
until in or around Decemher 2006., in the Westem Distriét of
Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant MICHAEL McFERRCN POPE,
knowingly and willfully 'did conspire, combine, cénfederate and

agree with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit

offenses against the United Stateg, that is:
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{a) Mail Fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1341;

(b} Wire Fraud, in vioclation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1343;

(¢) Bank Fraud, in viclation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1344;

{d) Obstruction of Justice, in violation of Title 1g,
United States Code, Section 1512; and

(e} Money Laundering, in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1956-

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

3. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendant MICHAEL
McFERRON’POPE_and gtraw buyer Tiffany Lynn Sprouts through_éprouts
Mortgage and Pope Financial Services recruitea, at least six
different‘straw buyers with favorable credit scores to separately
apply for mortgage loans from various financial and wmwortgage
lending institutiohs to obtain funds and to purchase residential
real estate selectedAby'deféndant MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany
Lynn Sprouts located in southwestern.Pennsylvania,on_behalf of the
defendant in exchange for a portion of the loan,proceeds-

4. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts created and obtained
félse_and fraudulent documents in connection with the mortgage

loans, including the following:
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{a) applications;

{r} financial statemenﬁs;

(¢} verifications of deposit;.”

(d) verifications of rent or mortgage;

{e} ~wverificationg of empioyment;{/
(£) telephone verifications;

(g} pfoperty leases; and

(h}) wage statements.

5. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEIL McFERRON POPE and.Tiffany'Lyﬁn,Sproats created and obtained
the false and fraudulent documents to inflate the straﬁ buyers*
employment and financial condition, to overstate income and assets,
in order to increase the dollar amount that could be horrowed
against the properties.

6. it waé further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts used appraisals with
an inflated opinion of market value of the proberties in orxrder ﬁo
inérgase the dollar amount that could be borrowed against the
properties. |

7. It was further a part of the coﬁspiracy that defendant
MICEAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts directed the straw
buyers to sign some of the false and fraudulent décuments.

8. It was further a part of the couspiracy.that defendant

MICHAEL MCFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts submitted the falge
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and fraudulent documents to the financial and mortgage lending
institutions by United States mail, including overnight delivery,
by interstate wire transmissions, and in person.

9. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEL MCcFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn @ Sprouts temporarily
. deposited funds into bank accounts of the straw buyeré to make it
appear that the straw buyers had sufficient assets to qualify for
the loans and to make the down payments.

16. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts created false lease
agreements purporting to show that the stréw buyers would be
renﬁing to others the propérties‘the straw buyers owned to conceal
'the true domicile of the straw buyefs and to make it appear that
the straw buyers had a source of income.

11. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defeﬁdanﬁ‘
MICHAEL: McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts transferred funds
between bank accounts and used currency to conceal the source of
dowﬁpaymentsrand the use of loan proceeds.

12 .It wag further a part of the consgpiracy that.defehdant
MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts structured the
transactions using credits and reimbursemeﬁt of éxpenses‘to reduce
the amount of cash needed to complete the transactions. |

13. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant

MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts made some loan
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repayment s to 1ull the financial institﬁtions into believiﬁg that
the loans would be repaid and ﬁo deter further examination aﬁd to
avoid foreclosure of the loans.

14. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MICHAEL McFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouts and the other straw
b&yexﬂ took séme of the lecan proceeds for their own usge and
benefit, including the purchase of additional pfoperties to further
the scheme, and to the loss and detrimegt of the financial
institutions.

15. It was further a part of the conspiracy that defendant
MTCHAEL MCFERRON POPE and Tiffany Lynn Sprouté directed a straw
buyer to testify falsely about the properties and related loans
before a grand jury sitting in the Western District of
Penmsylvania.

OVERT ACTS

16. In furtherance of the conspiracy, aﬁd to effect the
objects of the comspiracy, defendant MICHAET, MCFERRON POPE, and
Tiffany Lynn Sprouts, and others known and unknown to the Grand
Jury, did commit and qaﬁse to be committed, the following overt
actg, among others, in the Western District of Pennsylvania:

| (a) In or arownd July 2002, defendant'MICHAEL McFERRON
POPE dixected.a stra& buyer identified as ES to cobtain a $112,Sod

mortgage loan from ABN Amro Mortgage Group secured by property
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owned by the straw i)uyer located_on Griffin Street, Pittsburgh,
Penusylvania;

(B} In or around March 2004, defendant directed a straw
buyer identified as CS to cbtain a $1;?5,200 mortgage loan from
Aames Funding Corporation secured by and to purchase property
located on Thompson Street, Finleyville, Pennsylvania :

| | (c) In or around May 2004, defendant sold at an inflated
price an uninhabitable single family residence and land located on
Sugarcamp Road, Venetia, Pemnsylvania, to two straw buyers
identified as GR and FM;

{d) In or arocund Maxrch 2005, defendant MICHAEL McFERRON
- POPE directed a straw buyer identified as MS to obtain a 5922,500
wortgage loan from financial instit.uti_orn Bank of Zmerica secured by
and to purchase from two straw buyers identified as GR and FM at an
inflated pricé- a portion of 'the property locqted on Sugarcamp Road,
Venetia, Pennsylvania;

(e] In or arouﬁd ﬁ[érch 2005, defendant MICHAEL MCFERRON
POPE directed straw buyer Tiffany Lynn Sprouts -to' purchas'e at a
deflated price the remaining portions of thé property located on
Sugarcamp Road, Venetia, Pemnsylvania ;l

() In or around March 2005, defendant MICHBEL McFERRON
POPE directed straw buyer Tiffany Lynn Sprouts to obtain a $50, 000

mortgage loan from financial institution World Savihgs Bank secured
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by and to purchase properfy' located 6n. Scenery Ridge ﬁrive,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania;

{g} In or around April 2005, defendant MICHARL MCFERRON
POPE directed a straw buyér identified as MS to obtain a $£1380,800
mortgage loan ffom financial institution JP Morgan Chase Bank
Bet-:'ured by a portion of the property located on ‘Sugarcamp Road,
Venetia, PEDHSylvania;

(h} In or around May 2005, defendant MICHAEL McFERRON
POPR ‘difected straw buyer Tiffany Lynn Sprouts to purchase in
foreclosure the property located on Griffin Street, Pittsburgh,
Penngylvania;

(i} In or around Octobel; 2005, defendant MICHAEL
f-’IcFER_RON POPE dire'cted a straw buyer identified as JSV to obtain a -
£521,500 mortgage loan from Encore Credit Corporatioh secured by
and to puxchaserat an inflated price the property lecated on
Scenery Ridge Drive, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania;

(ﬁ) in or around October 2005, defendant MICHAEL,
McFERRCN POPE directed straw buyer Tiffan}' Lynn 'Sprouts to purchase
Jproperty located on Aetna Drive, Pittsburgh, Pennsyl?ania;

{(kJ In or around December 2005, defendant MICHAEL
MCFERRON POPE directed a straw buyer identified ags EM to obtain a
$168, 750 mortgage loan from First Magnus Financial Coréoration,and

a 556,250 mortgage loan from financial institution JP Morgan Chase
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Bank secured by and to purchase propertir locéted on Cedarvue Drive,
.Pitt-sburgh‘ Pennsylvania;

(L) lIn or arocund January 2006, defendant MICHAEL
MCFERRON POPE directed straw buyer Tiffany Lynn Sprouts to obtain
a $1é-8,800 moxtgage loan and a $21,100 mortgage loan from
GreenPoint Mortgage Funding secured by property located on Aetna
Drive, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvanla

(m) In or around June 2006, defendant MICHAEL MCFERRON
POPE directed straw bu‘jer Tiffény Liynn Sprouts to obtain a $164,‘5‘OO
mortgage loan from financial institution Washlngton Mutual Bank
-secured by and to purchase prope:rty located on Bassett Drive, '
Bethel Park, Pennsylvania; and |

(n) In or around December 2006, defendant MICHAEL
McFERRON POPE directed Tiffany Lym Sprclmts to obtain a $154,850
mortgage loan from financial imstitution Wells Fargo Bank secured

by and to purchase property located on East McMurray Road, Venetia,

Pennsylvania.

All in viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
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COUNT TWO

The Grand Jury further charges:

17. The Grand Jury realleges and 1ncorporates by reference
the allegatd.ons contained in paragraphs 1 a_nd 3 through 16 of Count
One of this Indictment. |

18. In or around Mar_ch 2005, in the Western District of
Pennsylvania, defendant MICHAEI, McFERRON POPE, did knowingly
conduct and attempt to conduct a financial transaction affecting
interstate commexrce, knowing that said Fipancial t'ransaction
involved the proceeds of some form of unlawful acfivity, with the
intent to promote the carrxying cn of the specified unlawful
‘activity of Mail, Wire and Bank Fraud; in thétt defendaﬁt MICHAEL
McFERRON POPE, caused the deposit of $283,237 from the proceeds of
the sale qf the property located on Sugarcamp Road, said funds
being the proceeds of Bank Fraud, into the account of Tlffany Lynn
Sprouts at Natlonal City Bank, with the intent to promote Mail,
Wire and Bank Fraud by obtalnlng an official check for the purchase .
of additional pfoperty.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1856 (a) (1) (&) (1} and 2.



Case 2:08-cr-00049-TFM  Document 1 Filed 01720/2008  Page 10 of 11

‘COUNT THREE

The Grand Jury further charges:

15. 'The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference
| the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 and 3 through 16 of Count
One cof thisg Indictment.

'20. In or around October 2005, in the Western District éf
Penné,ylvania, defendant MICHAEL MCFERRON POPE, did knowingly
conduct a_nd attempt to conduct a flnanc1a1 transaction ~affecting
lnterstate commerce, knowing that said flﬂéﬂClal transactlon
~involved the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, with the
'mtent to promote the carrying on of the specified unlawful
activity of Mail, Wire and Bank Fraud; in that defendant MICHAEL 7
McFERRON POPE, caused the deposit of $462,'358 from thé proceeds of
the sale of property located on Scenery Ridge Drive, said funds

being the proceeds of Wire Fraud, into the account of Tiffany Lynn
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Sprouts at National City Bank, with intent to promote Mail, Wire

and Bank Fraud by obtaining an official check for the purchase of

additional property.
All in viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1956 (a) (1) {n) (i) and 2.

True Bill,

roREhREG 7T T

?&R@Em BUCHANAN
nited States Attorney
PA ID No. 50254
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CRIMINAL CASE INFORMATION SHEET

Pittsbﬁrgh X . Erie Johnstown

Related to No. _07-331 Judge _McVerry
(A1l criminal prosecutions arising out of the same criminal
transaction or sexries of transactions are deemed related) .

CATEGORY: 1. Antitrust & Securities Fraud Og_({? "
2. Tax ' a
3. X . General Criminal '

Defendant's name: Michael McFerron Pope

Is Indictment waived: . yes X __ no

Pretrial Diversion: yes X _no

Juvenile proceeding: yes X _no

Defendant is: X _ Male Female

Superseding Indictment or

Information: ves X _ no

Previous case number:

If superseding, previous case was/will be:

Dismissed on defendant’s motion
Dismissed on government's motion
After appellate action

Other (explain)

|

County in which first
offense cited occurred: Allegheny County

Previous proceedings before
Magistrate Judge:

Case No.:

PLEASE.INCORPORATE MAGISTRATE CASE WITH CRIMINAL CASE

Date arrested or date :
continuous U.S. custody began:

Defendant - is in custody _ X is not in custody

Name of Ingtitution:

Custody is on: , this charge another charge

another conviction

State Pederal
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Detainer filed:
Date detainer Filed:
Total‘defendants:
Total counts:

Data below applies to
defendant No.:

Defendant's name: -

COUNT NO. U.S. CCDE

2-3

18 U.5.C. § 371

18 U.S.C. §§
1956 (a) (1) (n) (4)
and 2

yes X _ no

1

. .__Michael McFerron Pope

SUMMARY OF COUNTS

QFFENSE - | FELONY MISDEMEANOR
Conspiracy X
Money Laundering X

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the.above entries are true and correct.

DATE:

JAN 3 0 2008

BRENDAN T. CONWAY
Assistant U.S. Attornky

PR ID No. 78726
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANTA
URITED STATES OF AMERICA

v,

Criminal No. Og”(‘(o)

MICHAEL McFERRON POPE

CERTIFICATION AND NOTTICE FQR FILING PRETRIAI. MOTIONS

I hereby éertify that I have been notified by the United
States Magistrate Judge that all pretrial motions must be filed
within ten (10) days of Arraigmnment unless the Court extends the

time upon written application made within said ten (10) day period.

Date Attorney for Defendant
MICHAEL MCFERRON POPE
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

Criminal No. Og"t(q

MICHARL, McFERRON POPE

ARRATGNMENT PLEA

Defendant MTCHAEL, McFERRON POPE
being arraigned, pleads

in open Court this day of

(Defendant's Signature)

(Attorney for Defendant)
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- INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
¥OR THE. WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA _

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
)
v, ) Criminal No. 08-49
MICHAEL MCFERRON POPE )
CHANGE OF PLEA

AND NOW, the defendant in the above entitled case hereby
withdraws his plea of.not guilty 7

entered February 19,2008,

And now pleads guilty .in open court

Té counts One, Two and Thrée

- This 2 ay of February 2009. -

T/ ,ilpef_é;dani’s Signature)

~ ?K;torﬁgy for De%é;dm



FileED
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA |
. DEPARTMENT OF BANKING i e
FPARTMENT OF BANKING pnigus -2 pitie: 53
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA - PA DePt U

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF
COMPLIANCE, INVESTIGATION AND

LICENSING : .
: Docket No.: 100133 (ENF-ORD)

Y.

MICHAEL McFERRON POPE, individually

CERTIFICATE OF¥ SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served a copy of the foregoing Order of Prohibition
upon the parties below, who constitute the only parties of record in this proceeding, in
accordance with the requirements of 1 Pa. Code § 33.31:

BY FIRST CLASS MAIL and CERTIFIED MAIL

Michael McFerron Pope
Register # 09778-068

FCI Edgefield

Federal Correctional Institution
P.O.Box 725

Edgefield, SC 29824

Dated this 2 day of August 2010.

arah E. Sedlak, Assistant Counsel
onwealth ennsylvania -
Department of Banking
17 North Second Street, Suite 1300
Harrisburg, PA 17101
(718) 787-1471



